
 

 
Meeting of:   

 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: Tuesday, 16th November, 2021 
Time: 6.00 pm. 

 
Venue: Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU 

 
Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page No 
 
1   Apologies  

 

 To receive any apologies for absence.  
 
2   Declarations of Interest  

 

 Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

 

 
3   Urgent Items of Business  

 

 To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

 

 
4   Minutes  4 - 11 

 To consider the Minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held 14th September 2021 and to note the actions 
list appended thereto. 

 

 
5   Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 

2021/2022  
12 - 16 

 To note the Committee’s 2021/22 Work Programme  
 
6   Digital Strategy  17 - 50 

 Director of Neighbourhoods to deliver a presentation on an updated  

Public Document Pack



Digital Strategy for the Council. 
 
7   Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2021/2022: 

Quarter 2 Performance Update  
51 - 77 

 To scrutinise second quarter performance (July – September 
2021/2022) in respect of Neighbourhoods and Resources Directorates. 

 

 
8   Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman  Annual Review 

2020-21  
78 - 87 

 The Annual Review of complaints made to the Local Government and 
Social Care Ombudsman regarding Rochdale Borough Council in the 
year ending 31st March 2021. 

 

 
9   Exclusion of Press and Public  

 

 To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining 
part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public 
interest would not be served in publishing the information.  

 

 
10   Insurance Claims Report 2020/21  88 - 105 

 Confidential report regarding the Council’s insurance claims in 
2020/2021. 

 

 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members 
Councillor Ali Ahmed Councillor Stephen Anstee 
Councillor David Bamford Councillor Allen Brett 
Councillor Peter Joinson Councillor Michael Holly (Chair) 
Councillor Kallum Nolan Councillor Shaun O’Neill (Vice Chair) 
Councillor Faisal Rana Councillor Linda Robinson 
Councillor Donna Williams Councillor Elsie Wraighte 
  

 

 
 



 

 
For more information about this meeting, please contact:- 
Peter Thompson 
Committee Services 
Rochdale Borough Council 
Number One Riverside 
Rochdale  
OL16 1XU 
 
Telephone – 01706 924715 
E-mail – peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk  

mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
Tuesday, 14th September 2021 

 
PRESENT:  Councillor Holly (in the Chair); Councillors Anstee, Brett, Kelly 
(for Bamford), Donna Williams and Wraighte.  
  
OFFICERS: A. Ibrahim (Assistant Director – Legal, Governance and 
Workforce/Monitoring Officer), J. Rooney (Assistant Director – Information, 
Customers and Communities), S. Smith (Deputy Chief Finance Officer),  
D. Brierley (Head of Communications), C. Goddard (Head of Revenues and 
Benefits), S. Knowles (Head of Internal Audit) and P. Thompson (Resources 
Directorate). 
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Councillor Besford, Councillor Emsley and one 
member of the public. 
 

10 APOLOGIES 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Ali Ahmed, Bamford, 
Joinson, Nolan, O’Neill, Rana and Robinson. 
 

11 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
Further to the Council’s Code of Conduct, Councillor Kelly declared a personal 
and prejudicial interest in respect of agenda item 7 (Call-in: Pennines 
Township Funds 2021/2022) as he is a Members of Pennines Township 
Committee, the Committee that originally considered this matter, on 15th July 
2021, and he vacated the room during the consideration and determination of 
this agenda item.  
 

12 MINUTES 
Resolved: 
That the Minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held 22nd June 2021 be approved as a correct record and that the 
actions list, appended thereto, be noted. 
 

13 CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK 
PROGRAMME 2021/2022 
Members considered the Committee’s Work Programme for 2021/2022, which 
detailed the programme of reports to be presented during the 2021/2022 
municipal year. 
 
Resolved: 
That the Committee’s Work Programme 2021/2022 be noted. 
 

14 NOTES OF A MEETING OF CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
Resolved: 
That the notes of the informal meeting of Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee members, held 12th July 2021, be noted.  

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



 
15 CALL IN: PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2021/2022 

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Resources which 
presented details of a decision that has been made by Pennines Township 
Committee, at its meeting on 20th July 2021 (minute 7: Pennines Township 
Funds 2021/2022), which had been called-in by Councillors Emsley and 
Paolucci. 
 
Councillors Emsley and Paolucci had called-in this item for the following 
reasons: 

i. There is not enough information on which to make a decision;  
ii. An alternative policy option or options has/have been insufficiently 

explored;  
iii. The reason(s) for rejection of alternative policy options had been 

insufficiently explained;  
 
Councillor Emsley added that …”the bands had requested £5,000 (PTC/02/21 
Milnrow) and £11,650 (PTC/06/21 Wardle Anderson) respectively. They were 
awarded a flat rate £5,000 which was 100% of Milnrow’s request and less 
than 50% of Wardle Anderson’s request. These were the only award made 
that evening that was less than requested. Both bands make considerable 
contribution to the community and I do not feel that this was fair and equitable, 
I feel they could have both been awarded a percentage of what they were 
asking for, not a ‘flat’ rate.  
 
Wardle Anderson Brass Band, drew many of its players from local schools, 
there is a tradition of tuition from Wardle Academy being offered in the feeder 
Primary Schools: Kentmere, St Andrew’s, St James’s, Smithy Bridge, Holy 
Trinity and Littleborough. This meant that the membership of this band was 
based in the Pennines Township, specifically in the wards of Smallbridge, 
Wardle, Smithy Bridge and Littleborough. They should be given a fair decision 
by the Committee.”  
 
Councillor Besford, Vice Chair of Pennines Township Committee (who was in 
the Chair during consideration of Minute 7) addressed the Committee with 
regard to the call in. 
 
In considering the report, Members of the Committee were satisfied that 
Pennines Township Committee had followed the correct procedures in 
reaching their decision. It was noted that there was a preponderance of brass 
bands in that locality, which seemed to be historical and cultural, related to the 
geographical position of Pennines Township being so relatively close to West 
Yorkshire and Saddleworth. Pennines Township therefore received a 
relatively large number of funding applications from brass bands. It was 
suggested that the Cabinet investigate the feasibility of a separate fund being 
established from which brass bands could make applications to. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the matter be referred back to the Pennines Township Action 
Committee, for further consideration at the next available meeting 

Page 5



2. That the Cabinet be requested to investigate the feasibility of a 
separate fund being established from which brass bands, based across 
the Borough, can make applications to.  

 
16 UPDATED COMMUNICATIONS PLAN/STRATEGY 

The Head of Communications provided Members with a presentation on the 
updated corporate Communications Plan/Strategy. The presentation outlined 
the work and roles of the Communications Team at Rochdale Borough 
Council which included raising the profile and reputation of the Borough, 
supporting local businesses and helping to attract new ones, developing and 
enforcing communications standards, including branding, internal 
communications, design materials, managing  social media accounts, public 
relations and media enquiries and promoting events in the Borough. 
 
The Committee was informed that the strategic objectives of the 
Communication’s team included; 

 Improving perceptions and the reputation of the Borough and of the 
Council; 

 To promote the Council’s Core objectives – people, prosperity and 
place; 

 To promote Rochdale Borough as a destination – for commercial, 
tourism and residential purposes; 

 To change behaviour – save money, deliver better services; 
 To help attract inward investment – jobs and investment; 
 To position the Council as a key and integral part of Greater 

Manchester. 
 
Resolved: that the updated Communications Plan/Strategy be endorsed. 
 

17 RESOURCES AND NEIGHBOURHOODS DIRECTORATE PLANS 2021-22: 
QUARTER 1 PERFORMANCE UPDATE 
The Committee scrutinised a joint report of the Director of Resources and the 
Director of Neighbourhoods detailing the progress at the end of Quarter 1 
2021/2022 (30th June 2021) towards achievements of targets contained in the 
Resources Directorate Plan 2021/2022 and in the Neighbourhoods 
Directorate Plan 2021/2022. 

  
In considering the report, Members were updated on the actions that were still 
outstanding at 30th June 2021 and which had received an ‘amber’ rating.  

 
Resolved: 
That the Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2021/2022 - 
Quarter 1 Performance (April – June 2021), be noted. 
 

18 COUNCIL TAX DISCOUNT FOR CARE LEAVERS 
The Committee scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer that was 
seeking approval from the Council, on 13th October 2021, to amend the 
criteria for the 100% council tax discount scheme that existed for care leavers 
who resided in the borough, and who were aged 18 to 25, with effect from 1st 
November 2021. 

Page 6



 
On 1st March 2017, the Council had introduced a 100% council tax discount 
scheme for care leavers who lived in the Borough and who were aged 18 to 
20 years. On 12th December 2018, the Council extended the scheme to care 
leavers who lived in the Borough and who were aged 18 to 25 years. This 
reflected the Government change to extend the Council’s corporate parenting 
responsibility to 25 years.  
 
The Committee were informed that this report would be presented to the 
Cabinet on 21st September 2021, prior to its submission to the Council on 13th 
October 2021. 
 
Resolved: 
That the Committee endorses the proposals contained in the report and 
recommends that the recommendations contained therein, be approved by 
the Council at its meeting on 13th October 2021.  
 

19 BUDGET 2022/23 TO 2024/25 - GUIDELINES, TIMETABLE AND BUDGET 
UPDATE 
The Committee scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer which 
outlined the proposed corporate budget timeline 2022/2023 to 2024/2025 
including assumptions and principals. In considering the report the Committee 
was mindful that the Council is legally obliged to set a balanced budget. 
 
The Committee was advised that this report had previously been submitted to 
the Cabinet, at its meeting on 27th July 2021, where the recommendation 
contained therein were approved. 
 
Resolved: 
That the report be noted. 
 

20 3RD & 4TH QUARTER CORPORATE COMPLAINTS 
The Assistant Director (Information, Customers and Communities) provided 
the Scrutiny Committee with a summary of corporate complaints and 
compliments received during the third and fourth quarters of 2020/2021 
(September 2020 – March 2021).  The Committee was reminded that part of 
the Council’s performance management process was to ensure the Authority’s 
ambition to continuously improve services was realised. 
 
It was reported that in total, 282 new complaints were received during the 
second half of 2020/2021, across all services.  The majority of the complaints 
were resolved at ‘Stage One’, with only 17 escalating to ‘Stage Two’ and two 
complaints being dealt with at ‘Stage Three’.   A total of 119 compliments 
were received during this reporting period.  
 
Resolved: 
That the report be noted. 
 
 
 

Page 7



21 FINANCE UPDATE REPORT QUARTER 1 2021/2022 
The Committee received the ‘Finance Update’ report that had been prepared 
by the Chief Finance Officer, which outlined the Council’s forecast 2021/2022 
financial position as at the end of June 2021. The report covered corporate 
financial activity during the first quarter of 2021/2022 (April – June 2021) 
 
The Committee was advised that the Cabinet had previously considered this 
report at its meeting on 31st August 2021. 
 
The Finance Update report contained details of the following: 

a. The forecast Revenue outturn position, which is a break even position. 
The General Fund pressure relating to Covid-19 is £14,346k, and is 
offset by the use of government funding and reserves.   

b. Savings plans of £1,167k ongoing and £8k one off were included in the 
2021/2022 budget, as part of the 2021/2022 Estimates process. These 
are currently forecast as achieved, on target or to be achieved through 
mitigating actions. In 2020/2021 unachieved savings of £150k were 
reported which continue in 2021/2022; these will be met through the 
use of Government Grants and through mitigating actions. 

c. An update on the Health and Social Care Pool Fund opening position. 
A detailed report is to be presented to Integrated Commissioning 
Board’s meeting held on 31st August 2021. 

d. Forecast Capital expenditure of £107,328k; this is net of: brought 
forward balances from previous financial years of £94,703k; re-phasing 
of £56,258k into future years, mainly relating to work that has been 
completed to review and  re-profile the Capital Budget; and capital 
budget increases of £11,697k. 

e. The forecast 2021/2022 Collection Fund position of a deficit of £6,062k, 
which will be mitigated by additional Government Section 31 grant of 
£9,498k, leaving a residual surplus of £3,436. 

Resolved: 
That the report be noted. 
 

Page 8



CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
Actions List (after 14th September 2021 meeting) 
 
ISSUE/MEETING 
REQUESTED 

ACTION RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER(S) 

TIMESCALE OUTCOME 

Townships Plan 2020-
2022 
 

Chair and Vice Chair of the 
Committee to meet to consider the 
establishment of a study group to 
examine the role of Township 
Committees. 
 

Peter Thompson Ongoing   

Property Growth Fund 
Sub-Committee 

Performance reports, which are 
presented to the Property Growth 
Fund Sub-Committee, to be further 
presented to this Committee, to 
scrutinise performance etc. 

Chief Finance Officer Ongoing  Report was 
submitted to an 
informal meeting of 
the Committee’s 
membership on 12th 
July 2021 

Draft Digital Strategy Report outlining the Council’s Draft 
Digital Strategy 

Assistant Director – 
Neighbourhoods -
(Information, Customers 
and Communities) 

Ongoing  Report/presentation 
to 16th November 
2021’s committee 
meeting 

Council’s 
Communications 
Priorities 

Director of Neighbourhoods to 
submit a report to a future meeting 
of the Committee regarding the 
Council’s ‘communications 
priorities’ 

Director of 
Neighbourhoods/Assistant 
Director (Information, 
Customers and 
Communities) 

During the 2021/2022 
Municipal Year 
 

Report/presentation 
received at the 14th 
September 2021 
meeting 

Minutes of GMCA 
Scrutiny Committee 
meetings 

Future agendas for meetings of 
Corporate O&S Committee, 
wherever possible, to include the 
minutes, of meetings of Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority 
Scrutiny Committees.   

Peter Thompson Future meetings of 
the Corporate 
Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee  

Ongoing  

P
age 9



 

Health Related 
Absences 

The Head of Workforce and 
Organisational Development to 
provide Members of the 
Committee with a briefing note 
which compared Rochdale 
Council’s performance, relating to 
health related absences, with the 
other authorities in Greater 
Manchester. 

Head of Workforce and 
Organisational 
Development 

During 2021/2022 Referred to newly 
established 
Employment and 
Equalities 
Committee 

Strategic Plan – Covid-
19 

A report outlining the Strategic 
Plan dealing with the ongoing and 
future impact of Covid-19, be 
presented to a future meeting of 
the Committee. 

John Rooney During 2021/2022 A report to a future 
meeting of the 
Committee 

Local Government 
Ombudsman’s Annual 
report 

Clarification on which Committee(s) 
should consider this report 

Peter Thompson From 2021/2022 
onwards 

Submission to both 
Audit and 
Governance and 
Corporate O&S 
Committees as the 
remit  of the report 
covers areas of 
responsibility 
appertaining to both 
of these 
Committees 

Insurance Claims 
Report 

The Committee requests that future 
reports include details of 
associated ‘claims cost mitigation 
to the authority’. 

Martin Nixon Report to the 
Committee’s meeting 
on 16th November 
2021 

 

P
age 10



Brass Bands The Committee request that 
Cabinet consider establishing a 
fund for the Borough’s brass band 
(further to minute 15 of the 14th 
September 2021 meeting). 

 Submission to the 
next available 
Cabinet meeting 

Ongoing  

P
age 11



 
 

CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY  
 

WORK PROGRAMME 2021/2022 
 

Who are we? 
 
The Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee is made up of 12 Members 
(broadly reflecting the Council’s political balance) who manage the functions 
of the Committee (as detailed within the Constitution of the Council- also see 
the how we do it section below).  The meeting dates and report deadline 
dates are as follows:   

Name of Committee Final Reports Deadline 
Agenda Publication 
Deadline 

Date of meeting 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee  
Thursday, 10th June 2021 Monday,14th June 2021 Tuesday, 22nd June 2021 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
Thursday, 2nd September 2021 Monday, 6th September 2021 

Tuesday, 14th September 

2021 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
Thursday, 4th November 2021 Monday, 8th November, 2021 

Tuesday, 16th November 

2021 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 

Wednesday, 8th December 2021 

(additional meeting) 

Tuesday, 30th November 

2021 

Monday, 29th November 

2021 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
Thursday, 27th January 2022 Monday, 31st January 2022 

Tuesday, 8th February 

2022 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
Thursday, 10th March 2022 Monday, 14th March, 2022 Tuesday, 22nd March 2022 

 
 
What we do 
 
The Committee’s primary role is to hold the executive to account by way of 
undertaking policy and budget development reviews as well as 
questioning/challenging the judgement and decisions making of the 
Executive, Members, Portfolio Holders and Senior Officers. The Committee’s 
work is also supported by the study groups it commissions and monitors.  
 
How we do it 
 
The functions of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee are: 
 

 Develop a work programme detailing the objectives, timetable and 
methodology. 

 Responsible Committee for scrutiny of Townships generally; corporate 
service development and delivery; for scrutiny of partnerships or key 
contractors; corporate performance monitoring; corporate financial 

Page 12

Agenda Item 5



monitoring and the annual budget development consultation, and for 
overview of the respective Portfolio Holders and Directors. 

 Respond to consultation by Cabinet on relevant policy development 
and the annual budget proposals. 

 Scrutinise the in-year performance of Council Services and other 
appropriate bodies, in accordance with the Council’s Performance 
Management Framework and against approved Directorate Plans, 
where appropriate. 

 Scrutinise in-year budget performance. 
 Instigate the appropriate action in response to adverse service 

performance. 
 Scrutinise inspection reports and associated action plans produced by 

external agencies (where appropriate to this Committee). 
 Review and scrutinise executive decisions in accordance with the 

Council’s Constitution, which have been called-in by Members of the 
Council. 

 Receive reports, where appropriate, from the Council’s representatives 
on outside bodies, and to direct representatives to report to the 
Council, where appropriate. 

 Commission, scope and oversee studies and reviews relating to 
Council Services and issues directly affecting the Borough and, where 
appropriate, to make recommendations to the Cabinet arising from 
such studies and reviews. 

 Consider Annual Service Plans in line with Council Policy (Part 4E - 
Constitution of the Council). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



 
 
CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – MEETINGS IN 

2021/2022 
 
22nd June 2021 

 
 
12th July 2021 (Informal Meeting) 
 
Property Investments - Performance 
and Risk -  

Financial scrutiny of the activities 
of the Property Growth Fund Sub-
Committee 

 
 
14th September 2020 
 
Work Programme  To note the Committee’s Work 

Programme 
Call-in of a Pennines Township 
Committee decision 

 

Directorate Plans 2021/2022 – 1st 
Quarter - Resources and 
Neighbourhoods Directorates 

 

Corporate Complaints - Update Financial scrutiny 
Comprehensive Financial Update  Financial scrutiny 
Draft Communications Plan/Strategy Presentation  
Council Tax Discount for care leavers  Scrutiny of proposals 
Budget 2022/23 to 2024/25 - Guidelines, 
Timetable and Budget Update 

Scrutiny of proposals 

 
 
16th November 2020 
 
Work Programme  To note the Committee’s Work 

Work Programme To consider the Committee’s Work 
Programme  

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Directorate Plan Updates (4th Quarter 
2020/2021) 
 Resources Directorate 
 Neighbourhoods (Corporate 

Services) Directorate 

Performance management and 
monitoring 

Delegated Approvals – Summary 
Report 2020/21 

 

Final Outturn Report 2020/2021  

Presentation – Libraries Strategy  

Presentation – Contact Centre  

Page 14



Programme  
Call-in/Member items/other referrals    
Local Government Ombudsman:  
Annual Review 2020/2021 

Performance monitoring and 
management 

Insurance Claims Report (including vfm 
presentation from the Council’s 
insurance brokerage representatives) 

Financial scrutiny 

Digital Strategy (presentation) Scrutiny of proposals 
Directorate Plan Updates (2nd Quarter 
2021/2022) 

 Resources Directorate 
 Neighbourhoods (Corporate 

Services) Directorate 

Performance monitoring and 
management 

 
 
8th December 2021 (additional meeting) 
 
Work Programme  To note the Committee’s Work 

Programme  
Call-in/Member items/other referrals    
2022/23 Council Tax Tax-base Scrutiny of proposals  
2022/23 Setting the Business Rate Scrutiny of proposals 
2022/23 Budgetary proposals Budget development and scrutiny 
Comprehensive Financial Update – 
Presentation – including Revenue 
Budget and Capital Programme 
proposals 

Financial scrutiny 

 
 
 
8th February 2022 (including budgetary proposals for 2022/2023) 
 
 

 
 

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme  

Call-in/Member items/other referrals    
Local Government Act Report on the 
Robustness of the Budget 

Budget development and scrutiny 

The Revenue Budget and Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 

Budget development and scrutiny 

Reserves Policy Budget development and scrutiny 
Savings programme – Post Consultation 
Update 

Budget development and scrutiny 

Capital Investment and Disposals 
Strategy 

Budget development and scrutiny 

Treasury Management Strategy Budget development and scrutiny 
Corporate Debt Strategy Budget development and scrutiny 
GMCA Scrutiny Committee Minutes for information 

Page 15



 
22nd March 2021 
 
Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 

Programme 
Call-in/Member items/other referrals    
Directorate Plan Updates (3rd Quarter 
2021/2022) 
 Resources Directorate 
 Neighbourhoods (Corporate 

Services) Directorate 

Performance monitoring and 
management 

Corporate Complaints (6 monthly 
update – 1st and 2nd quarters 2021/22) 

Performance monitoring and 
management 

Financial Update Financial scrutiny 
Property Investments - Performance 
and Risk - 2021/22 

Financial scrutiny of the activities 
of the Property Growth Fund Sub-
Committee 

GMCA Scrutiny Committee Minutes for information 
 
To be arranged:  

 A report regarding the Strategic Plan relating to recovery from Covid-
19. 

 Artificial Intelligence (update from March 2021 meeting)

Page 16



Digital Experience Strategy 2022 to 
2025 Update

Helen Walton
Policy Officer

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 6



Preliminary Engagement
• January 2020 – partnership engagement session with approx 30 colleagues from 

the Council, CCG, GMCA and Action Together. 
• Throughout 2020 – engagement with Corporate Overview and Scrutiny at early and 

draft stages of the Strategy.
• October 2020 – Equalities Assembly Session on Digital Poverty and Inclusion. 25 

people from various public and VCFS organisations as well as residents. The session 
highlighted the extent of digital inequality in our borough:-
Many people in greatest need do not have an email account

A survey by Falinge Park High School at the beginning of the pandemic found a 1/3 
of children did not have internet access at home
Digital access is becoming an essential commodity like other utilities
South Asian communities are facing increasing challenges around use of digital 
equipment , this challenge is aggravated by additional language  barriers
Access to digital equipment and having the skills to use it is a big issue
Many services have moved to online and a digital offer. However online services 
and activities are not appropriate for all and a choice of phone or face to face is 
required

P
age 18



Formulating the Strategy

March 2021: consultation with the Council and CCG’s joint leadership team, the Local 
Care Organisation Senior Management Team, Cabinet, Overview and Scrutiny, relevant 
portfolio holders, members , the digital steering group and other strategic partners. 
Feedback from these sessions was used to update and finalise the strategy.
April 2021:  The draft Digital Strategy was taken to Action Together’s Inclusive 
Messaging Group. A raft of recommendations were made:

Importance of 
accessible 

information 
standards.

Health: platforms 
for info need to be 

easy to use.

The need for 
champions to 
address digital 

exclusion.

Importance of co
-design.

Training : in all 
wards, different 

settings by 
trusted people

Engagement with 
Business to 
understand 

challenges and 
barriers

Importance of 
investing/long 

term approach to 
digital

Implications of 
increasing 
screen time on 
health

P
age 19



 A Focus on Digital Inclusion

• Mindful of the recommendations, underpinning the entire strategy is the 
recognition that a proportion of the population in Rochdale is digitally excluded, 
through lack of access to tech, wifi or lack of skills.

• Reasons for digital exclusion – low income, age, disabilities, learning difficulties, 
ethnic origin, location, culture, language and lack of capability.

• As services are more prevalent online, significant numbers of people may miss out 
because they can’t or don’t have the motivation to engage digitally.

•  Digital exclusion is not new but the pandemic has highlighted that it is a barrier for 
many people.

• Equality Impact Assessment – The initial screening document highlights the need 
for the Strategy to address digital exclusion and the scope for certain digital 
solutions (such as AI and machine learning) to exacerbate  existing inequalities.

• A full Equality Impact Assessment will be undertaken in conjunction with 
consultation around the supporting Delivery Plan to the Strategy.

P
age 20



Key themes
• There are 8 broad themes forming the Strategy which, in order to provide 

alignment with the Corporate Plan, fall into two key areas:

Digital People Digital Places

Digital Inclusion Digital Skills

Digital Health 
and Social Care

Digital 
Interaction

Digital 
Infrastructure Digital Security

Digital Public 
Services

Digital Business 
and 

Employment

P
age 21



Broad ambitions
• The Digital Strategy is ambitious in its scope and seeks to ensure manifold  

outcomes as part of the borough’s digital journey. The overarching aims are:
• Digital People 

We want everyone to have a positive 
digital experience, benefitting their 

health and wellbeing, education, 
employment. No one will be excluded 

on our journey.

We want to encourage all age 
groups to develop basic digital skills 
to support them in getting online. 

We want to inspire people to pursue 
careers in the digital sector. 

We want to transform and enhance 
heath and social care through 

technology. We will also enable 
people to maximise their full 

potential and gain independence. 

We want to ensure that everyone in the 
borough, whatever their age, needs, 
location or situation can use digital 

technology to interact and share with 
others and participate in civic and 

community life.

P
age 22



Broad Ambitions (contd.)

Digital Places

We want all areas of the borough 
to have increased and reliable 

mobile coverage and faster 
broadband connectivity 

We want citizens and businesses 
to be safe when using digital 

services 

We want the borough to be an 
attractive place for digital 

businesses, offering high speed 
connectivity, local digital talent 

and a range of support.

We want to lead by example in 
maximising the use of 

innovative technology to 
improve services.

P
age 23



Interim Work on the Strategy

• The work on the strategy has been taken up by the Policy, Performance and 
Improvement Team.

• A broad internally facing consultation exercise within Council Directorates and NHS 
CCG around the draft strategy, has been undertaken over the past few months.

•  This resulted  in little deviation from the original draft and the incorporation of 
further achievements and progress.

• It has reinforced the fact that digital inclusion must be the top priority.
• An Internally facing Digital Strategy Working Group  has been reconvened and 

widened. The initial focus of the working group will be the formulation of a linked 
Delivery Plan. It will also drive forward the engagement and consultation work 
around the delivery plan in the borough.

P
age 24



What next? Digital Strategy – Formal Sign Off

    
• Informal Cabinet – 2nd December 2021
• Following Informal Cabinet the Strategy will be professionally 

designed.

    
• HMR CCG Governing Body
• 22nd January 2022

    
• Cabinet 
• 25th January 2022

P
age 25



What next? Delivery Plan

• The Digital Working Group is to host two workshops in the near future, one around 
Digital People, the other around Digital Places.

• The workshops will centre on the formulation of the Delivery Plan, which is linked 
to the Strategy.  

• They will provide specific focus on the resources required – both financial and 
staffing, to deliver the Strategy.

• A further key area of focus will be the delivery of consultation with the public 
around the Delivery Plan and Digital Exclusion.

• There is a pressing need to establish an external facing Digital Partnership with 
other key Stakeholders in the borough to achieve the ambitions of the Digital 
Strategy.

• The Council is involved in several Digital Projects at GM level, which will further 
assist in pushing forward the borough’s own digital projects and digital 
infrastructure.

P
age 26



Digital Experience 
Strategy 2022 - 2025

P
age 27



  The future growth of our borough relies upon making more   
  and better use of the opportunities that digital innovation and 
  transformation provides. A digital place is one that utilises  
  new technologies and systems. Digital people are able to 
  take advantage of those new technologies and better their lives.

Our Priorities: Digital People and Places

P
age 28



People are 
protected 

People are 
resilient 

People are 
healthy

People fulfil 
their potential 

Place is 
inclusive 

Place 
supports 

sustainable 
growth

Councillor Neil Emmott
Leader of the Council,
Rochdale Borough 
Council

We want everyone to have a positive digital 
experience. The Council is committed to 
creating a digital infrastructure that will 
provide fast and responsive public services 
across our borough, keep communities 
connected and promote digital security. We 
aim to improve the digital skills of our citizens, 
increase digital awareness and digital access 
and support businesses and employment in 
the digital sector. The Covid-19 pandemic has 
led to a surge in the use of digital 
technologies and has created potential for 
new ways of work and life. We will build on 
those opportunities, improving our place and 
people’s lives through digital transformation 

  Introduction

Doctor Chris Duffy
Chair of Heywood, 
Middleton and 
Rochdale Clinical 
Commissioning Group

Transforming health and care through 
technology has the potential to deliver better 
outcomes for patients and citizens. We will 
empower people to make healthy choices by 
enabling digital access to health and care 
information and we will support independent 
living through digital products and services. 
We will use systems, technology and 
processes to deliver seamless care across all 
health and care settings, offering a mix of 
online, telephone and face to face access. 
We will also analyse data to better inform 
policy, preventions and treatments and build 
public trust and confidence in how health 
services look after and use patient 
information. 

Kerry Bertram
Rochdale Strategic 
Locality Lead, 
Action Together

There is a gap that exists between individuals, 
households, businesses and geographic areas 
at different socio-economic levels with regard 
to their opportunities to access information and 
communication technologies (ICT) and using 
the internet for a variety or activities. The 
‘digital divide’ contributes to the inequality of 
access to goods and services available 
through technology, for example computers 
and the internet provide users with improved 
education, which can lead to higher wages. 
Those without access are at a disadvantage. 
The Voluntary, Community, Faith and Social 
Enterprise sector (VCFSE) is committed to 
helping close the digital divide that exists 
across our borough.

P
age 29



  Digital challenges and drivers for change

17.4% of adults in Rochdale 
have not been online

1 in 3 local businesses 
don’t have a website

Digital employers are 
constrained by a lack of 

local skills and talent

26% of adults in 
Rochdale don’t have all 
five basic digital skills

Rising demand on 
public services

Rise in cyber crime

Digital sector is 
growing at pace

Need to reduce the cost of 
delivering services

Covid-19 has 
inspired health 
innovation and 
remote working 

P
age 30



People are 
protected 

People are 
resilient 

People are 
healthy

People fulfil 
their potential 

Place is 
inclusive 

Place 
supports 

sustainable 
growth

  Digital exclusion, data poverty and the digital divide 

A significant proportion of the population is 
digitally excluded because they lack internet 
access and/or have low levels of digital skills. 

Some of the reasons for digital exclusion are 
age, low income, disabilities, learning 
difficulties, ethnic origin, location, culture and 
language. 

As services start to move online more and 
more, significant numbers of people might miss 
out because they can’t or don’t have the 
motivation to engage in this new digital world. 

Digital exclusion is not new, but the pandemic 
has highlighted that it is a growing problem.

Vital services such as education, welfare, health and work are now online. 
Digital transformation is taking place because it enables services to be 
delivered more efficiently, at less cost, with less effort and in a joined up way. 
It is also thought that digital optimises the customer experience because 
people can access services in ways that suit them and how they live.

However those that cannot use or access digital will be less able to obtain 
digital information, shop online, participate democratically, or learn skills and 
offer skills. Those who cannot access enough data for their needs are data 
poor and living in Data Poverty.

We recognise that people that are digitally excluded are likely to be 
disproportionately heavy users of public services. For example those 
seeking help with benefits are unlikely to have access to a computer 
because they can’t afford it, yet they need to make a claim online.

Our digital experience strategy is about focusing on people first. 
Understanding the reasons why they are excluded from technology and 
putting in place interventions to enhance digital inclusion and close the 
digital divide. 

P
age 31



Improve our place and people’s lives through digital transformation

Digital 
Public Services

Digital Business 
and Employment 

Digital Health 
and Social Care 

Digital 
Infrastructure

Digital 
Interaction

Digital 
Inclusion

Digital People Digital Places

Digital 
Skills 

Digital 
Security

  Our vision: Improve our place and people’s lives 
 through digital transformation 

P
age 32



We want everyone to have a positive 
digital experience. Citizens will have the 
opportunity to access technology and the 
basic skills to use it. They will feel 
confident and safe in using online services 
and motivated to use digital to manage 
their lives. Digital will benefit their health 
and wellbeing, education, employment, 
social interaction and communication. 
Nobody will be excluded from our digital 
journey, support will be provided where 
citizens have specific needs or digital isn’t 
the appropriate solution.

  Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Inclusion

P
age 33



  Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Inclusion: Future outcomes

• Everyone has the opportunity to use digital equipment and 
technology to access the internet and get online 

• People with additional needs will be supported to engage with 
technology and access digital activity irrespective of their needs

• Buildings across the borough will be used as digital hubs to 
enable people to access equipment, training and support to 
engage

• Everyone knows how to be safe online, report abuse, and 
access support

• Everyone is motivated to get online because they understand 
how it could be relevant and helpful and they are confident in 
using digital to meet their needs, manage their lives and reap 
the time and cost benefits of online services

• Digital will complement other forms of customer access where 
transactions still require human interaction

• More young people with digital equipment and connectivity to 
support home learning

Digital Inclusion: Achievements and progress 

• Our libraries are now digital hubs with 262 computers and free Wifi 
across all 16 and self scanning in 3. There’s space for people to use 
their own laptops

• DigiTech library established in partnership with VCS and the Council to 
enable citizens to borrow digital equipment. Currently 40 tablets and 
laptops and a new batch of Chrome Books available

• College Bank/Falinge residents to be offered free internet access via a 
“Mesh Network” by the end of 2021

• Public access to NHS guest wi-fi at all NHS site

• Free Wifi for the public at the Better Together centre will be available in 
late 2021

• All Cared For Children have been given laptops to enable online 
learning to continue through Covid

• Our Care Leaver offer includes internet access up to age 25 for those 
in education, training and employment. All care leavers attending 
university are supported to purchase a laptop for their studies. 22 
laptops from the Department of Education were allocated to care 
leavers to support them into Education, Training and Employment

 

P
age 34



We want to encourage all age groups to 
develop basic digital skills to support them 
in getting online. We want to inspire people 
to pursue careers in the digital sector, 
undertaking learning at school or retraining 
to enhance their job prospects and to help 
us address digital skills shortages.

  Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Skills

P
age 35



  Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Skills: Future outcomes

• People have all 5 basic digital skills (communicating, 
handling information & content, transacting, problem 
solving, being safe and legal online)

• More people directed and supported into digital careers 
via the school curriculum and college offer; and by 
having access to equipment and education to develop a 
range of skills

• Residents helping others to develop their digital skills 
and access online services (in a learner led approach)

• Local employers retraining and reskilling their 
workforces in digital skills and capabilities 

Digital Skills: Achievements and progress

• Digital training sessions available in local libraries, at least 
one session per week with an average attendance of 15 
people – general skills, family history sessions, coding etc. 
The library doorstep service assists with digital coaching

• Digital Champions are delivering informal  digital training in  
community settings throughout the borough

• Google digital garage bus visited the borough offering free 
workshops and face-to-face coaching

• Heritage Hackers supporting the DigiTech library to fix/update 
donated digital equipment which can then be “gifted” to 
residents. Residents will also be taught to fix / update these 
devices.

• Crescent Radio and Employment Links Partnership 
delivering digital skills programme. Deeplish Community 
Centre providing digital skills support within the local 
community with a plan to improve English and maths skills as 
a progression pathway. 

P
age 36



We want to transform and enhance heath 
and social care through technology. We 
will use digital processes, equipment and 
data to enable seamless delivery of health, 
social care and education services and to 
support people in monitoring and 
managing their own health and wellbeing. 
We will also enable people to maximise 
their full potential and gain independence. 
We will also use digital to advance health 
policy, preventions and treatments, leading 
to better outcomes  and better quality of 
life for everyone.  

  Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Health and Social Care

P
age 37



  Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Health and Social Care: Future outcomes

• More people practicing self care, and enabled to live where 
they choose to, by accessing health and social care services 
online and through digital applications. 

• People getting the right care, first time because health 
records, plans and preferences are integrated across all 
services and can be accessed in real time

• Less administration for healthcare professionals and more 
efficient services for service users through digital bookings, 
referrals and prescribing systems; to ensure people only tell 
their story once and support effective transition at all points.

• More people using assistive technologies and remote 
monitoring for tracking wellbeing, rehabilitation and 
independent living. More people using digital information to 
make informed choices.

• Data tools being used to support health research, clinical 
trials and identifying people at greatest risk

Digital Health and Social Care: Achievements and progress

• Greater Manchester Care Record (GMCR) implemented 
across health and care services to store adult 
patient/resident data in one place, improving data 
accessibility for GP’s, district nurses, social workers etc.; 
Data analysis functions added to improved understanding of 
population health

• Laptops and software provided to all GP practices to enable 
remote consultations with patients through video and smart 
messaging; online triaging introduced to enable accessibility 
to GP services via digital 

• Over the last 12 months the CCG and Adult Care has been 
trialling the ORCHA application which helps people to 
maintain independence in their own home

• Supporting care home residents by providing tablet 
computers for video calls and systems to support 
interactions with health care teams

 

P
age 38



We want to ensure that everyone in the 
borough, whatever their age, needs, 
location or situation can use digital 
technology to interact and share with 
others, participate in civic and community 
life, stay informed, communicate and 
engage in learning, support and cultural 
activities and experiences. 

  Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Interaction

P
age 39



  Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Interaction: Future outcomes

• Communities using digital platforms to engage with 
one another, access support and mobilise action in 
their local area

• People accessing information about local services 
from online directories

• People utilising digital tools to give feedback or to take 
part in consultation to support service or policy 
development and decision making processes   

• People engaging with culture, heritage and 
arts through online experiences

• People kept informed, feel involved and able to 
connect through digital communications 

Digital Interaction: Achievements and progress

• Council’s website consistently ranked in the Top 10 of public sector 
websites. On average Council social media posts reach over 
352,000 people

• ‘Get Rochdale Working’  Facebook page has 10,000+ followers

• Four successful Digital Festivals. In 2019-20 businesses had a 
presence and there were over 650 visitors

• Increase in Digital meetings – 250 businesses attend the RDA’s  
regular business breakfast meeting.

• Over 3500 residents are signed up to the Council’s electronic 
communication platform

• Dippy Dinosaur exhibition was delivered online during COVID-19. 
4,324 hits on the virtual tour page, with 520 page views for the 
Dippy at home activities. Around 400 children took part in Zoom 
online activities.

• Digital kiosks will be implemented in libraries to enable people to 
use digital in a private setting 

P
age 40



We want all areas of the borough to have 
increased and reliable mobile coverage 
and faster broadband connectivity to meet 
the increasing demands for digital access 
and use across homes, businesses, public 
services and transport networks.

  Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Infrastructure

P
age 41



  Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Infrastructure: Future outcomes

• Digital systems across our public transport networks 
to support smarter travel 

• Using data platforms to gather intelligence about user 
experiences to inform planning and development of 
services that meet local needs

• Improving availability and reliability of broadband and 
mobile access through 5G and full fibre 

• Improving accessibility through free Wifi in town 
centres and public buildings

• All Council buildings will function as IT hubs

• Expanding mobile working systems to enable 
integrated partnership working

Digital Infrastructure: Achievements so far

• Rates of full fibre connectivity, which can deliver 
speeds up to 300Mbps, are significantly higher in 
Rochdale (8.3%) than the UK average (6.3%). The 
borough is ranked number 1 for Wireless Telecoms 
Activities across Greater Manchester (GM)

• 99 sites hosting council services are benefitting from 
the GM full fibre project and have higher speed 
connectivity (up from 2% to 25%). All 6 integrated 
health and social care teams will benefit from the full 
fibre project

• Rochdale has been invited to be an early adopter of the 
GM One Network which will provide council and health 
and care staff the ability to  log into one network to 
better support integrated working

 

P
age 42



We want citizens and businesses to be 
safe when using digital services and 
understand how to protect themselves, 
their networks and data against cyber 
crime and other risks. We will ensure that 
public sector systems that hold public data 
are secure and private so that people have 
absolute confidence in what’s happening 
to their information.

  Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Security

P
age 43



  Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Security: Future outcomes

• People are aware of internet harms so that they can 
protect themselves from cyber crime

• Storage, sharing and access to public data is secure 
and private

• Local businesses are taking protective measures 
against threats to their networks and devices

• Local businesses abiding by Best Practice Security 
Standards 

• The Council and local businesses have cyber 
essential plus accreditation 

Digital Security: Achievements

• The Council is Public Service Network accredited

• The Council has  Payment Card Industry Data 
Security Standard accreditation to act as a bureau 
for processing online payments securely.

• The Council has Cyber Essentials plus accreditation

• The Council has a dedicated ICT Security Manager 
to maintain our systems, particularly those that store 
public data, to ensure personal details are kept safe

• CCG IT services are ISO27001 and Cybersecurity 
Essentials Plus certified.

 

P
age 44



We want to lead by example in maximising 
the use of innovative technology to 
improve services. We will make processes 
more efficient, and ensure our staff have 
the tools and skills to enable them to work 
smarter.

  Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Public Services

P
age 45



  Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Public Services: Future outcomes

• Public sector workforces are flexible, forward 
thinking, have core digital skills and frontline workers 
able to help citizens develop their own skills

• Digital good help embedded across public services to 
ensure those at risk of being excluded are supported 
to use digital in a positive way 

• Internal processes digitized and automated to 
improve speed and accuracy of common tasks, 
technology used to enable remote working and 
people self serving through digital platforms

• Machine learning being used to provide data insights 
to support decision making 

Digital Public Services: Achievements and progress

• Over 80 council services supported by electronic-forms to enable 
residents to report, request and pay online. Over 44,000 
registered users for MyAccount. Revenues and Benefits service 
almost fully digital, meaning processes from beginning to end are 
supported by digital solutions. 

• Walk-in enquiries down by 75%. Call handling times reduced by 
over 10,000 minutes per month and call costs reduced to £4.30 
per call. Customer satisfaction at 98%

• During the pandemic the number of active users of library eBook 
and Audiobook services increased by 45%. We are implementing 
out of hours access in branches and Wifi printing

• 2475 laptops and 1658 mobile phones provided to council staff 
and conferencing tools such as MS Teams deployed across 
Council and CCG to enable remote working. Cloud first approach 
adopted for applications and software to support business 
continuity

 

P
age 46



We want the borough to be an attractive 
place for digital businesses, offering high 
speed connectivity, local digital talent and 
a range of support. We will encourage and 
support businesses of all types and sizes 
to digitise their business and make the 
most of the opportunities that this brings. 
We will encourage interest in science, 
technology, engineering and mathematics 
subjects (STEM) to facilitate careers in the 
digital sector.

  Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Business and 
Employment

P
age 47



  Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Digital Business and Employment: Future outcomes

• More digital businesses relocating, starting up or 
expanding in the borough, creating employment 
opportunities

• Digital enterprise at the heart of community wealth and 
social value to help grow the local economy

• More investment and funding for digital initiatives in the 
borough

• Businesses receiving advice and support about 
revolutionsing their operations and processes through 
use of digital technologies  

• Under represented groups progressing in STEM so 
that businesses have access to a diverse pool of local 
digital talent 

Digital Business and Employment: 
Achievements and progress

• There are many business in Rochdale that are 
connected into the digital services offered by the 
Business Growth Hub including Digital and Creative 
Tech – 33 firms and Digital Innovation – 93 firms

• Rochdale is home to Zen Internet, a digital start up that 
is now one of the Sunday Times 100 best companies to 
work for

• Rochdale saw a 168% increase in digital start ups 
between 2016 and 2018 (from 91 to 244)

• Fire Service Museum – offering co-worker space for 
small businesses

 

P
age 48



  Engagement and Collaboration 

Delivering the Digital Strategy will require engagement and collaboration from various partners across multiple areas of work. 
The key stakeholders we will partner with include:

  Rochdale’s Digital Journey  Rochdale’s Digital Journey

Public Sector
Rochdale Council 

NHS partners
Public Sector partners 

GM Combined Authority

Housing
Registered Providers

Private rented landlords

Schools and Colleges
Schools 

Nurseries
Academies

Colleges

Industry and Commercial
Rochdale Development Agency

Growth Company
Local Business / Industry / Co-operatives 

Commissioned Services

Culture 
Your Trust

Rochdale Culture Network

Voluntary Sector
Action Together

Community Groups 
Social Enterprises

Interfaith and Faith Groups

P
age 49



Our digital ways of working

Start with user needs
We will talk to users to understand their diverse needs and lived 
experience so that the right services can be provided now and in 
the future. We will keep that conversation going.

Think broader
We will develop and build platforms, systems and tools that can 
be used by other organisations and partners

Design with Data
We will use analytics to drive design, build and testing processes 
for any digital initiatives that are implemented

Make it Simple
We will ensure services are easy and simple for citizens to use 
of any digital skill level. They will initially be built on a small 
scale to allow for user testing and refining once they are live

Understand the customer journey
We will design services to fit with people’s lifestyles 
and how they want to experience digital

Make it for everyone
We will ensure services are inclusive and will help those 
who find using our services the hardest to get the support 
they need. We will think about those people from the start

Focus on results
We will deliver digital services that enhance a persons life 
or life chances

Be open 
We will share ideas, learning, success and failures to 
support ongoing digital innovation and transformation

  Pioneering Digital: Our ways of working

P
age 50



 

Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date of Meeting 16th November 2021 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Finance and Corporate, 
Cabinet Member for 
Communities and Co-
operation 

Report Author Ben Jorgensen  
Public/Private Document  

 

 
Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2021-22: 

Quarter 2 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
1. To report progress at the end of Quarter 2 (1st July – 30th September 2021) 

towards achievement of the targets contained in the Resources Directorate 
Plan 2021-22 and Neighbourhoods (Corporate Support) Directorate Plan 
2021-22. 

 
Recommendation 

 
2. Members are asked to review the information contained within the report 

and the appendices. 
 

Reason for Recommendation 
 
3. 
 
 
 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 

In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework, 
progress toward targets contained within Directorate Plans are to be 
reported to relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each 
quarter.  
 
The Quarter 2 progress reports for the Resources Directorate and 
Neighbourhoods (Corporate Support) Directorate are attached at Appendix 1 
and 2 respectively. Actions within each appendix have been colour coded in 
accordance with the following criteria: 
 
Red: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the target 
date 
Amber: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the 
target date due to circumstances outside of the directorate’s control  
Green: Action completed by the target date  
Purple: Action is not yet due for completion but is currently on track 
 

Page 51

Agenda Item 7



3.3 
 

The appendix includes a commentary against actions that are showing red, 
amber or purple. 

 
 

Key Points for Consideration 
 
4. 
 
 
 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 

Resources Directorate Plan 2021-22 Progress 
 
Performance Overview 
 
92% (12) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2021-22 are 
ongoing. One action is not fully complete and the action due date has now 
passed. The chart below shows the overall performance of the Directorate in 
meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 2. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The action that isn’t fully complete and the due date has passed (Amber) 
relates to: 
 
 Refresh and support the Member Development Programme  

 
 
Quarter 2 Summary 
 
As part of the action to review and evaluate the decision making structure 
for joint health arrangements, it was agreed to improve the effectiveness of 
ICB agenda planning across organisations. There is ongoing development 
of a proposed structure for this and a timeline has been agreed via the 
Integrated Commissioning Board. NHS software packages have been 
utilised to align timelines and forward planning. Governance Services 
access to NHS report planning functions which are incorporated into the 
report tracker considered at wider leadership team. 
 
In order to refresh and support the Member Development Programme, 
benchmarking has been undertaken with other Greater Manchester 

Page 52



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Authorities which was informed by LGA best practices and training 
packages. The Scrutiny Study Group considered practices at other non-GM 
authorities as part of their work with a report being produced and approved 
by the Scrutiny Sub-Group. The report has been approved by Informal 
Cabinet with a programme being pulled together alongside a 
communications plan. 
 
To support the implementation of the READI Equality Objectives, the 
Aspiring Leaders programme 2021 took a BAME positive action approach to 
recruiting the cohort. 30% of the cohort identify as BAME. The chair of the 
BAME staff network group has been invited to become a member of the 
leadership academy board. Equality & Diversity training sessions have been 
added to extended in house training offer for 2021, this is available to all 
staff. Modules on equality diversity and inclusion are now included on all 
leadership programmes. Aspiring leaders also includes a module on 
allyship. Proposals for conducting listening events for Disability and 
LGBTQ+ staff have been created and are awaiting leadership approval, with 
a view to setting up staff network groups to take place during 
November/December 2021. 
 
In order to monitor the development of the Rochdale Riverside 1 financial 
model, a dashboard has been created. There is an aim for this to be an 
approved reporting tool in Q3. Further work has been undertaken to make 
the in year modelling more accurate. The focus on Rochdale Riverside has 
been less acute due to the prioritising of the Upperbanks development. 
Quarterly meetings will be arranged to deliver the monitoring in line with 
overall corporate financial reporting as soon as arrangements have been 
made by Governance Team to put Committee meetings in place. This will be 
developed further as required - the PGF Sub-Committee has not met this 
financial year. 
 
 
Neighbourhoods (Corporate Support) Directorate Plan 2021-22 
Progress 
 
Performance Overview 
 
73% (8) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2021-22 are ongoing. 
18% (2) actions have not been completed and the due date has now 
passed. One further action has now been completed. The chart below 
shows the overall performance of the Directorate in meeting its plan targets 
at the end of Quarter 2. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 53



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The actions that aren’t fully complete and the due dates have passed 
(Amber) relate to: 
 
 Develop New council Communications Strategy 2021-24 
 Complete consultation and commence delivery of Rochdale Borough 

Digital Experience Strategy 2021-24 
 

 
Quarter 2 Summary 
 
As part of the sub-action to coordinate and support successful delivery of 
the £11million public sector decarbonisation scheme there is a continuation 
of work with GMCA to deliver heat carbonisation and associated 
technologies. The delivery deadline has been extended with projects now 
due to be completed no later than 31 March 2022. There is still some 
procurement to be undertaken to secure suppliers for certain technologies 
(e.g. LED lighting) but this is underway. Additionally there is continuing work 
with the Energy Systems Catapult (ESC) on developing a local area energy 
plan for the borough. This will be used as a key planning document in 
response to the challenge of decarbonising heat and transport to help inform 
and support local authorities, distribution network operators, business and 
communities to plan for a cost-effective low carbon transition to achieve Net 
Zero. Latest work includes mapping our wards against the distribution 
network. 
 
A tendering exercise has been completed for a new video surveillance 
system (VSS) as part of the action to develop and implement the Council’s 
own CCTV monitoring suite. Following advice from STAR Procurement, a 
procurement framework was used to appoint a contractor. Construction work 
for the build of the new CCTV monitoring suite within Rochdale Police 
station is on target for completion for the end of 2021. A new RBC CCTV 
Steering Group will be established with key stakeholders. A further Review 
of CCTV provision underway is underway and a self-assessment tool has 
been drafted and awaiting to be finalised prior to end of 2021.  
 

Page 54



4.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.14 
 
 

There has been increased attendance and contribution to monthly 
“Community & Faith Group” meetings to address insight, concerns and 
future planning for integration of faith and non-faith communities across the 
borough. Additionally there has been attendance and RBC representation 
since 2020 at fortnightly Grassroots gathering meeting with communities to 
understand concerns and needs and developing appropriate partnership 
actions with stakeholders to address any unmet needs and mitigate 
emerging community concerns e.g. ASB, underage sales, speeding, 
vandalism, criminal exploitation etc. Relevant insight from both meetings 
above are escalated to relevant stakeholder for action and an update 
provided to the community at the next meeting which increases 
resident/stakeholder satisfaction. 
 
As part of the Council and borough’s community response to Covid a plan is 
being finalised for mainstreaming support to households that have been 
most impacted by the pandemic including those clinically extremely 
vulnerable.  A series of discussions with partners and colleagues have taken 
place and the plan will link to a number of key documents, including the 
Council’s Prevention Strategy to help build on longer-term support for 
vulnerable households. 
 
The council’s community response team, who have worked closely with 
many local community groups and partners throughout the pandemic, 
scooped the ‘Community Heroes’ MJ Local Government Achievement 
award. Judges praised the impressive way people came together to solve 
problems, and share skills to provide a cohesive response to the needs that 
arose during the Covid-19 pandemic. According to an expert panel, the 
foundations had been laid for a support network that will survive the 
pandemic and thrive for many years to come.  
 
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
Not applicable 

 
 

Costs and Budget Summary 
 
5.   None 

 
Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. None 
  

 

Consultation 
 

Page 55



7. Not required 

 
Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 
8. Appendix 1 -  Resources 

Directorate Plan 2021-22 Q2 
 
Appendix 2 – Neighbourhoods 
(Corporate) Directorate Plan 
2021-22 Q2 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale OL16 1XU 

 

For Further Information Contact: Ben Jorgensen, , 
ben.jorgensen@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 56



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  1  Of  12 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

R21001 Contribution to Local Government Boundary Commission for England Electoral Review 30 November 2021 
 
 

 
95% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

R21001.A Final recommendations from LGBCE on new ward boundaries 11 May 2021 
 
 

 
100% 

Final recommendations received from the Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) on 11/05/21 

R21001.B 
Implementation of new ward boundaries as recommended by the LGBCE and amendments to the 
electoral registers 

30 November 2021 
 
 

 
90% 

Public consultation on polling districts and polling places to commence 11 October 2021. Draft report underway. Amendments to polling districts suggested by members 
on the Working Party being mapped. Final report to go to Council in February 2022. 

          

R21002 To strengthen Governance arrangements across the organisation at service level 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
50% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

R21002.A Improvement of senior officers engagement governance activities 30 June 2021 
 
 

 
100% 

Leadership Team have approved a project plan for the role out of training and administrative support from Governance to Directorate work planning and decision 
making procedures. 

R21002.B Service based schemes of delegation reviewed with Officer nominations 31 October 2021 
 
 

 
30% 

Adult Care and Resources Directorates complete. Economy Directorate review undertaken and partially completed. Public Health ongoing with further work to be 
scheduled with Children's and Neighbourhoods Services. Estimated completion date now January 2022. 
 

R21002.C Constitutional scheme of delegation is updated to meet the needs of the organisation 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
20% 

P
age 57



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  2  Of  12 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

Included within wider constitution review, being led by Democratic Structures Working Party. 

          

R21003 Health and Social Care - Review and evaluation of decision making structure for Joint Health 
Arrangements 

31 October 2021 
 
 

 
93% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

R21003.A Align comparative decision making timelines with CCG / LCO 30 September 2021 
 
 

 
100% 

Continue to work with Local Care Organisation and Clinical Commissioning Group colleagues to ensure the transformation to revised structure in April 2022. 

R21003.B Provide training on the Council’s decision making process and structures 30 September 2021 
 
 

 
100% 

Governance Structure included within the Overview & Scrutiny work programme for 2021/22. 

R21003.C Improve effectiveness of ICB agenda planning across organisations. 30 September 2021 
 
 

 
95% 

Development of proposed structure and timeline been agreed via the Integrated Commissioning Board. Utilised NHS software package to align timelines and forward 
planning. Governance Services access to NHS report planning functions which are incorporated into the report tracker considered at wider leadership team. 
 

R21003.D 
Review Health and Social Care governance in light of legislative changes to integrated care 
systems 

31 October 2021 
 
 

 
 80% 

Included within wider changes to CCG / LCO. Awaiting final reading of Bill through Parliament, expected December 2021, therefore expected date amended 

  

R21004 Refresh and support the Member Development Programme 30 June 2021 
 
 

 
98% 

P
age 58



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  3  Of  12 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

R21004.A Identify best practice 31 May 2021 
 
 

 
100% 

Benchmarking was undertaken with other Greater Manchester Authorities and informed by LGA best practices and training packages. The Scrutiny Study Group 
considered practices at other non-GM authorities as part of their work. 

R21004.B Member led task and finish group to report 31 May 2021 
 
 

 
100% 

A report has been produced and approved by the Scrutiny Sub-Group. 

R21004.C Adoption of new member development option 30 June 2021 
 
 

 
95% 

Report was approved by Informal Cabinet. Programme being pulled together alongside communications plan. 

  

R21005 To undertake a base-line review of legal services provision provided within current budget 
framework and a full service review of council priorities to ensure that legal services has the capacity 
and skill set to meet the Council’s priorities. 

31 March 2022 
 
 

 
54% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

R21005.A Evaluate the Corporate Plan 31 August 2021 
 
 

 
100% 

Review of the Corporate Plan is complete. 

R21005.B Review work undertaken for each directorate and establish directorate priorities 31 August 2021 
  
 

 
95% 

Liaised with all the directorate leads. Operational and corporate priorities have been identified. Further refresh to incorporate remerging priorities. 

P
age 59



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  4  Of  12 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

R21005.C Consider skill set of staff currently within legal services 31 December 2021 
  
 

 
70% 

Workforce planning undertaken via HR 

R21005.D Understand the impact on corporate demand and legal services staff 31 December 2021 
  
 

 
10% 

 Processed commenced through the meetings with the Heads of Service 

R21005.E Review current budget provided to undertake this 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
25% 

 Analyses of work undertaken including emerging work streams. 

R21005.F Consider the revision and potential implementation of new SLAs 31 March 2022 
  
 

 
25% 

Work on-going linking into the above priorities. 

  

R21006 Support the development of the ICS and the Locality Construct 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
52% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

R21006.A 
Finalise arrangements for Workforce Group with updated TOR and Action Plan based on Board 
priorities 

31 March 2022 
 
 

 
100% 

The Workforce subgroup meets on a regular basis and the work programme continues to be developed. 

R21006.B Support CCG with transitional arrangements/TUPE for employees in scope 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
40% 

P
age 60



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  5  Of  12 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

Work continues with HR supporting the preparation, document verification and consultation processes in readiness for the transfer. The service provides CCG 
representation on the GM People & Culture Steering Group, GM HR Delivery Group and GM OD Delivery Group. 

R21006.C Financially support the development of Locality Construct 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
40% 

Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCG's) are receiving guidance from National Health England with the development of an Integrated Commissioning Services (ICS) and the 
dis banding of CCG's. However it still remains unclear how the funds will flow from a Greater Manchester level to a locality level and the impact this will have on the 
pooled fund and whether this will present financial pressures in 22/23 onwards for the Council. 
 

R21006.D Ensure the impact on the pooled fund for 22/23 is understood 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
40% 

Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCG's) are receiving guidance from National Health England with the development of an Integrated Commissioning Services (ICS) and the 
dis banding of CCG's. However it still remains unclear how the funds will flow from a Greater Manchester level to a locality level and the impact this will have on the 
pooled fund and whether this will present financial pressures in 22/23 onwards for the Council. 

 

R21006.E Develop awareness of financial risks/opportunities 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
40% 

 

  
The budget report that is being presented to Cabinet in November will detail the financial risks to the Council in relation to the uncertainty with future health 
funding/arrangements. 
 
 
  

R21007 Supporting the implementation of the READI Equality Objectives 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
56% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

R21007.A 
Develop / commission / deliver & evaluate a BAME focussed module for the Aspiring Leaders 
programme 

31 March 2022 
 
 

 
70% 

P
age 61



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  6  Of  12 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

The Aspiring leaders programme 2021 took a BAME positive action approach to recruiting the cohort. 30% of the cohort identify as BAME. Modules on equality diversity 
and inclusion are included on all leadership programmes. Aspiring leaders also includes a module on allyship. BAME delegates have access to mentors and coaches 
through the BAME staff network group. 
 

R21007.B Develop a process to Implement the revised EIA process across the organisation 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
60% 

Engagement with the Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) with Heads of Service still to be completed. The launch of the reviewed process will now take place in November 
2021 due to a delay in the process and sickness absence. 
 

R21007.C 
Develop / commission / deliver E&I learning & development interventions for the leadership 
academy and related programmes and across the organisation as necessary 

31 March 2022 
 
 

 
60% 

Equality, diversity and inclusion modules are included on all leadership programmes including the Rochdale leadership academy. The chair of the BAME staff network 
group is invited to become a member of the leadership academy board. Equality & Diversity training sessions have been added to extended in house training offer for 
2021, this is available to all staff. 
 

R21007.D 
Review current policies and procedures relating to disability in the workplace supported by 
listening events for disabled staff to create a workforce disability plan 

31 March 2022 
 
 

 
50% 

Proposals for conducting listening events for Disability and LGBTQ+ staff have been created and are awaiting leadership approval. This is with a view to setting up staff 
network groups to take place during November/December 2021. 
 

R21007.E Development of an inclusive recruitment toolkit 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
40% 

Due to capacity issues across the teams the draft ‘inclusive recruitment tool is currently on hold. The implementation date has been revised to December 2021 

          

R21008 Supporting recovery from COVID through the OD Plan and financial planning 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
37% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

P
age 62



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  7  Of  12 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

R21008.A 
Developing / implementing / evaluating programmes to: Support teams in building back better iii. 
Supporting change management, managing hybrid teams, systems thinking / leadership iv. 
Providing resilience and wellbeing interventions 

31 March 2022 
 
 

 
50% 

Agile working support for managers & staff through face to face training, workbooks, guides and e-learning. Bespoke team building & support sessions delivered to Early 
Help & Schools SMT & Prevention Board and Finance SMT. Resilience & wellbeing sessions included on all leadership programmes. Mental health, stress management 
and effective delegation included in extended training offer for 2021. BAME staff network established with work underway for listening events for disability and 
LGBTQ+. 
 

R21008.B 
Developing / implementing / evaluating programmes to: Provision of coaching support for 
managers at all levels as required 

31 March 2022 
 
 

 
50% 

Coaching skills included on all leadership programmes. Internal coaching availability refreshed through intranet page. 

R21008.C 
Developing / implementing / evaluating programmes to: Providing OD support to transformation 
projects as required 

31 March 2022 
 
 

 
50% 

Workforce Development Practitioner (Climate Change & Sustainability) advertised; once appointed OD will work with them to support their training offer and delivery. 

R21008.D 
Developing / implementing / evaluating programmes to: Assess the impact of recovery on the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy 

31 March 2022 
 
 

 
0% 

 This sub-action is yet to commence. 

  

R21009 Development of shared service arrangements for provision of Internal Audit Functions. 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
28% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

R21009.A Identify Neighbouring LA’s who may be potential partners 30 June 2021 
 
 

 
100% 

Two Local Authorities are expressing interest in a shared service arrangement. 

P
age 63



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  8  Of  12 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

R21009.B Consider delivery models 30 September 2021 
 
 

 
40% 

Regular meetings are being held and external support has been sourced to help ensure that the correct delivery model option is identified. Initial review at Rochdale 
Borough Council has been completed, work commencing with Tameside. A further Authority has expressed an interest, causing a review of dates however still on track 
for completion by 31/03/22. 
 

R21009.C Costing of options 31 December 2021 
 
 

 
0% 

Date to be revised to 31 Dec, reliant on the work around delivery models being completed. 

R21009.D Development of succession plan 31 December 2021 
 
 

 
0% 

 This sub-action is yet to commence. 

R21009.E Implementation Plan 31 December 2021 
 
 

 
0% 

 This sub-action is yet to commence. 

  

R21010 Further development of the Rochdale Riverside 1 financial model together with assessing 
models for future regeneration projects 

31 March 2022 
 
 

 
39% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

R21010.A Develop an in year monitoring report 30 September 2021 
 
 

 
25% 

Q2 dashboard is in development and we aim for this to be an approved reporting tool in Q3. Further work has been undertaken to make the in year modelling more 
accurate. The focus on Rochdale Riverside has been less acute due to the prioritising of the Upperbanks development. 

P
age 64



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  9  Of  12 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

R21010.B Deliver monitoring information to PGF sub committee 30 September 2021 
 
 

 
50% 

As per Q1: PGF Sub-Committee receives the PGF Monitoring Report, dashboard and risk register. Quarterly meetings will be arranged to deliver the monitoring in line 
with overall corporate financial reporting as soon as arrangements have been made by Governance Team to put Committee meetings in place. This will developed 
further as required - the PGF Sub-Committee has not met this financial year. 
 

R21010.C Update Cabinet Members on a 6 monthly basis 30 September 2021 
 
 

 
50% 

Q2 Rochdale Riverside reporting to Members has been slightly delayed by prioritising the Upperbanks development. We aim to brief members in the 
November/December cabinet. 
 

R21010.D Overall management of key financial risks 30 September 2021 
 
 

 
35% 

The PGF and Rochdale Riverside Risk registers are live documents that are reviewed regularly, and a risk summary is now included in reporting dashboards and is 
informing future budget funding requirements. The now approved Upperbanks development will be project managed with an accompanying Risk Register. Collectively 
these risks still need to better feed into the relevant boards for review. The wider risk report, referenced in Q1 was presented to the Corporate Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee in July, and to Cabinet in September. 
 

R21010.E 
Development of financial models and understanding of financial implications and risks with future 
regeneration projects 

31 March 2022 
 
 

 
35% 

The development of the Upperbanks modelling has been the focus in Q2 which allowed for Senior Leaders to approve the scheme. The Commercial Finance Team grows 
both in number and in our understanding of modelling these complex large scale investments into the borough's regeneration. As a team we are looking to undertake 
advanced excel training to enhance future modelling and we will work with and learn from external investment advisory companies to understand key drivers of 
financial performance, risks and rewards. 

  
 
 

R21011 Automated Salary monitoring and budget to which links between Civica and i-Trent 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
38% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

P
age 65



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  10  Of  12 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

R21011.A Data cleansing of Information held in i-Trent 30 September 2021 
 
 

 
65% 

Data cleansing continues as part of BAU activities. 

R21011.B Automated files to support budget monitoring and budget setting 30 September 2021 
 
 

 
15% 

  
Work continues although testing on hold due to iTrent database migration project. 
 

R21011.C Interface with Civica 31 December 2021 
 
 

 
75% 

  
Testing of final reports has been put on hold due to UAT and parallel running for iTrent database migration project July - Nov. 
 

R21011.D Overall completion 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
0% 

 Expected completion is still scheduled for 31/03/2022 

  

R21012 Step up the approach to transformation and align transformation to both the Corporate Plan 
priorities and delivery of the MTFS. 

31 March 2022 
 
 

 
24% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

R21012.A Establish a new transformation board. 30 April 2021 
 
 

 
100% 

Transformation Board has been established meeting 6 weekly since April 2021 

R21012.B 
Identify cross cutting transformation programmes and agree via the transformation board 
approximately five priority transformation programmes. 

31 May 2021 
  
 

 
20% 

P
age 66



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  11  Of  12 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

Market testing for Expressions of Interest from external Consultants started at the end of Sept. A selection of those who express an interest will be invited to present 
their plans to the Leader, Chief Exec and others on 21st Oct prior to a formal procurement exercise starting in late Oct. It is hoped that consultants will be appointed 
before the end of Q3 (Dec 21) and will start in early Q4 (Jan 22) so that the 5 priority programmes are identified and agreed before the end Q4 (Mar 22). 
 

R21012.C 
Develop clear business cases and resource plans for each of the priority transformation 
programmes. 

31 August 2021 
  
 

 
0% 

  
This will follow on once the work to identify the 5 priority projects has been undertaken and completed. 
 

R21012.D 
Align key transformation programmes to the councils MTFS, incorporating anticipated benefits as 
budget assumptions 

31 October 2021 
  
 

 
0% 

 This will follow on once the work to identify the 5 priority projects has been undertaken and completed. 

R21012.E Improve the monitoring, support and challenge to the transformation fund projects 31 March 2022 
  
 

 
0% 

 Work is yet to commence on this sub-action. 

  

R21013 Roll out intelligent automation technology across the organisation 31 March 2022 
  
 

 
41% 

          
Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

R21013.A 
Complete and review the automation of at least two processes within Revenues and Benefits 
services 

30 April 2021 
  
 

 
80% 

The first process (Invoice Processing) is now in its final stages of testing and is expected to operational during w/c 11 October 2021. Work has begun on the second 
process (currently Free School Meals automation) and this expected to take a month to complete. 

R21013.B 
Engage with services across the Council to develop a pipeline of processes which could be 
automated. 

30 April 2021 
  
 

 
100% 

P
age 67



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  12  Of  12 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

Two workshops have already been held with a 3rd mop up workshop currently scheduled for 14th July. Circa 90 opportunities that lend themselves to Intelligent 
Automation (IA) technology have been identified initially and are currently being reviewed in relation the ease of fit with IA technology and size of savings opportunity 
there is. This has been developed as a Proof of Concept savings proposal with £105k of savings already reflected in the budget wef 22/23 and the costs being funded 
through Transformation Fund. 

R21013.C 
Develop a business case to set out the cost and benefits that can be achieved through rolling out 
IA technology across the organisation. 

31 May 2021 
  
 

 
50% 

A business case has been developed for the 2 Proof of Concept processes within Revenues and Benefits. 2 year funding was agreed with recurrent savings of £105k wef 
22/23 to be established. Further savings will be identified from the roll out of other processes across the Council. 
 

R21013.D 
If approved – Establish a centre of excellence / new IA team to implement automated processes 
across the organisation. 

31 July 2021 
  
 

 
40% 

Two members of staff within the Resources Directorate are currently undertaking an online practitioner certification and training module. They will support roll out of 
processes within the Resources services, and will support, wherever possible a new Business Analyst role that will be created within the Business Solutions team in ICT 
Services to lead on all mapping and coding of processes. Funding for the Business Analyst was agreed at Transformation Board on 22nd Sept and a recruitment process 
is starting imminently. 
 

R21013.E Develop a prioritised implementation plan. 31 August 2021 
  
 

 
20% 

 Three further processes have been identified as the next processes and once the Business Analyst is recruited further processes will be prioritised. 

R21013.F Automate processes as per the implementation plan 31 March 2022 
  
 

 
0% 

 Work is yet to commence on this sub-action. 

R21013.G Carry out an annual review of what has been achieved. 31 March 2022 
 
 

 
0% 

 Work is yet to commence on this sub-action. 

 

 

 

 

P
age 68



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  1  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

 

N2101 Progress the climate change policy agenda by implementing processes and coordinating and 
facilitating projects that support achievement of Rochdale’s Sustainable Development Goals and the 
priorities in the GM 5 Year Environment Plan 

31 March 2022 
  
 

 
27% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2101.A 
Finalise strategic and operational approach for responding to climate emergency including 
development of a partnership strategy and project framework to support allocation of the 
£1million climate change capital funding pot. 

31 December 2021 
  
 

 
30% 

A process has now been established to support funding bids to the Climate Change capital pot. A few applications have been submitted and are being considered. There is 
limited money so we need to prioritise the projects that will offer the biggest carbon emissions reduction. We are part of another GM collective bid to phase 3 of the 
Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme - this requires match funding. We have also met with GMCA and Aecom to explore the potential for a Heat Network in the Town 
Centre - some funding will be required to support feasibility studies and delivery if we decide to progress. 

N2101.B 
Coordinate and support successful delivery of the £11million public sector decarbonisation 
scheme 

31 March 2022 
  
 

 
30% 

We are continuing to work with GMCA to deliver heat decarbonisation and associated technologies as part of the PSDS Phase 1. The delivery deadline has been extended 
- Projects are now due to be completed no later than 31 March 2022. There is still some procurement to be undertaken to secure suppliers for certain technologies (e.g. 
LED lighting) but this is underway. 

N2101.C 
Develop a local area energy plan for the borough working with GMCA and Energy Systems 
Catapult 

31 October 2021 
 
  

 
25% 

We are continuing to work with the Energy Systems Catapult (ESC) on developing a LAEP for the borough. This will be used as a key planning document in response to the 
challenge of decarbonising heat and transport to help inform and support local authorities, distribution network operators, business and communities to plan for a cost-
effective low carbon transition to achieve Net Zero. Latest work includes mapping our wards against the distribution network. 

N2101.D 
Deliver a successful month of climate change action aligned with COP26, Green Summit and Gaia 
Installation 

30 November 2021 
  
 

 
25% 

P
age 69



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  2  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

Planning is underway for the Mayors Green Summit on 18th October. The Council will have an exhibition stand and will give a 5 minute lightening talk. Our theme is 
engagement - showcasing the arts and culture approach we are taking to get different audiences to engage with the climate change agenda. M6 Theatre and 
Littleborough arts festival are supporting the event. We are also working with Your Trust to design a programme of activity for when the Gai installation comes to 
Riverside at the end of November - the programme will target young people, residents and businesses with the aim of raising awareness and influencing behaviour 
change. We will promote Gaia at the Mayors Green Summit. 

N2101.E Develop a carbon literacy programme and roll out across the Council 31 March 2022 
  
 

 
15% 

Approval has now been given for a temporary Workforce Strategy and Development Practitioner role dedicated to climate change. Recruitment will begin this month. The 
role will lead the roll out of carbo literacy across the Council. Two officers and the Portfolio Holder for Climate Change and Sustainability have completed the accredited 
Carbon Literacy training and will support the design and delivery of the Council's own programme. 

          

 N2102 Develop New council Communications Strategy 2021-24 30 September 2021 
  
 

 
38% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2102.A Consult with members and leadership to agree objectives and priorities 30 June 2021 
  
 

 
50% 

  
Internal consultation has ended and results are being analysed. The external survey closes on the 24th October. 
  

N2102.B A refresh of the council’s communication strategy completed 30 September 2021 
  
 

 
25% 

 This is ongoing. 

          

N2103 Expand super-fast broadband to at least 25% of the borough through Full Fibre to premises 
project 

31 January 2021 
  
 

 
60% 

          

P
age 70



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  3  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2103.A 
Agree with Greater Manchester partners how benefits of super-fast broadband will be maximised 
across the borough 

31 January 2022 
  
 

 
70% 

 Rochdale have joined with Oldham, Stockport, Bury, GMCA, TfGM and GM Fire and Rescue Service to explore the option of a GM ONE network, soft market testing has 
been undertaken and a procurement exercise is being currently underway to look at procuring overlay services collaboratively. The contract is due to be awarded to the 
successful bidder in January 2022. 

N2103.B 
67 premises (of 99) with a public sector presence across the borough connected with full fibre to 
increase connectivity 

31 December 2021 
  
 

 
90% 

 Installation of infrastructure at the identified buildings has been underway, however there have been some delays due to some access being restricted due to COVID. 
DCMS funding has now been extended until December 2021 
 

N2103.C 
Enable the use of the full fibre for residents and businesses through engagement and 
appointment of a market supplier 

31 December 2021 
 
  

 
20% 

 Once the market supplier is approved following the tender process an implementation plan will be available showing key dates when overlay services will be installed 
throughout the borough. 
 
 

N2104 Complete consultation and commence delivery of Rochdale Borough Digital Experience Strategy 
2021-24 

31 August 2021 
  
 

 
31% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2104.A Consult with partners and public on draft digital strategy including issues around digital inclusion 31 July 2021 
  
 

 
37% 

 
Engagement on the draft strategy has been completed internally with including health, care, ICT, Libraries, etc. 
Further engagement with the public and external partners will be planned by the Digital Working Group as a matter of priority. 
The Digital Working Group has been reconvened and the membership has been extended – terms of reference are in progress. 
Development of the Digital Delivery Plan is in progress and a draft has been produced for further refinement by the Digital Working Group. 
The Council is continuing to engage in Cooperative Council's Innovation Network Policy Lab on Digital Exclusion and will use the learning from this to inform the Delivery 
Plan and our work on how to engage digitally excluded people. 
 

P
age 71



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  4  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

N2104.B Complete sign off of Strategy and delivery plan 31 August 2021 
  
 

 
25% 

This work was previously being led by the AD of Transformation who has now left the authority. It has been passed to Corporate Policy. The delay is attributed to the 
handover of the work. Sign off of the strategy will be complete by Jan 2022. Further work is required on the Delivery Plan 

  

N2105 Deliver improved and innovative service delivery across Council through roll out of Office 365 
and conferencing tools 

31 March 2022 
  
 

 
22% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2105.A 
Put in place a project plan for roll out of Microsoft Office 365, including addressing ICT security 
and Information Governance issues 

31 May 2021 
  
 

 
20% 

  
Options Paper to be formulated to present to Council Leadership to agree order and priority of enablement’s across the Authority which will feed into subsequent 
discussions with partners to assist in the design and configuration of services available with the M365 licensing. 
 

N2105.B Review of conferencing tools to ensure best use of future technology 31 August 2021 
  
 

 
60% 

  
Draft strategy document written. Internal review ongoing within ICT. 
 

N2105.C Agree approach to future conferencing tools 31 December 2021 
 
  

 
5% 

  
Awaiting final review as per N2105.B before approach can be agreed. 
 

N2105.D Roll out of Microsoft Teams and associated functionality completed across Council 31 March 2022 
 
  

 
5%  

  
Dependent on N2015.A. Teams likely to be a higher priority than other M365 deployments and subject to N2105.A, B and C. 
 

P
age 72



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  5  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

  

N2106 Work in partnership to develop and implement new partnership Domestic Abuse Strategy 31 January 2022 
 
  

 
76% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2106.A Undertake domestic abuse needs assessment to help inform new strategy 30 September 2021 
 
  

 
90% 

  
Needs Assessment delayed due to staff sickness absence. Needs Assessment will be completed by end of November 2021.  
 

N2106.B Implement funding to address domestic abuse accommodation 31 January 2022 
 
  

 
60% 

  
Spend plan developed and agreed by Joint Leadership Team and urgent key decision. Delivery of plan now underway. 
 

N2106.C Implement new partnership domestic abuse strategy 31 January 2022 
 
  

 
80% 

  
Draft strategy produced by Community Safety. Awaiting recommendations from Domestic Abuse Needs Assessment prior to finalising the strategy and implementing. 
 

          

N2107 Develop and implement the Council’s own CCTV monitoring suite and the provision of an in-
house CCTV monitoring 

31 December 2021 
 
  

 
80% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2107.A 
Complete tendering exercise for a new video surveillance system (VSS) for the new in-house CCTV 
monitoring service 

31 August 2021 
 
  

 
100% 

P
age 73



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  6  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

  
Following advice from STAR Procurement, a procurement framework was used to appoint a contractor. Action now complete. 
 

N2107.B Complete the build of the new CCTV monitoring suite within Rochdale Police station 31 October 2021 
 
  

 
80% 

  
Construction work at the police station is almost complete. On target for completion for end of 2021.  
 

N2107.C 
Undertake council-wide review of CCTV provision and develop a self-assessment process which 
assesses compliance with the CCTV Code of Practice 

31 December 2021 
 
  

 
60% 

New RBC CCTV Steering Group established with key stakeholders. Review of CCTV provision underway. Self-assessment tool now drafted and awaiting to be finalised prior 
to end of 2021.  

          

N2108 Implement plans to develop more cohesive and integrated communities 30 September 2021 
 
  

 
100% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2108.A 
Consult with partners, statutory, community, voluntary, faith sector and Action Together to 
develop insight trackers to collect appropriate information in enhance tension monitoring process 
and enhance community cohesion 

30 September 2021 
 
  

 
100% 

  
Attendance and contribution to monthly “Community & Faith Group” meetings to address insight, concerns and future planning for integration of faith and non-faith 
communities across the borough. Attendance and RBC representation since 2020 at fortnightly Grassroots gathering meeting with communities to understand concerns 
and needs and developing appropriate partnership actions with stakeholders to address any unmet needs and mitigate emerging community concerns e.g. ASB, underage 
sales, speeding, vandalism, criminal exploitation etc. Relevant insight from both meetings above are escalated to relevant stakeholder for action and an update provided 
to the community at the next meeting which increases resident/stakeholder satisfaction. 
 

N2108.B 
Recruit 20 Health Equality Champions to deliver over 5000 health improvements amongst BAME 
(including Gypsy, Roma, Eastern European, disabled and older people and reduce health 
inequalities in line with Covid recovery plans 

30 June 2021 
 
  

 
100%  

P
age 74



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  7  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

  
We have exceeded the target and recruited 45 Health Champions across the borough from different communities and genders. From April 2021 to July 2021 – approx. 
3365 direct conversations with residents have taken place through various platforms which include face to face and virtual webinars. This will continue through to the end 
of the year. In addition, other media platforms have been utilised such as Radio, social media and Satellite TV to engage, educate, empower, and raise awareness which 
has a potential reach of 000’s. 
 

  

N2109 Develop the role of the In-house Contact Centre within internally and with external partners, in 
line with the agreed future vision 

31 October 2021 
 
  

 
65% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2109.A Sign off and communicate future vision, objectives and priorities for the Contact Centre 30 June 2021 
 
  

 
85% 

 Service engagement on the vision has been completed, with the exception of Children services, meeting scheduled for November. 

N2109.B Review Contact Centre performance framework 30 September 2021 
 
  

 
75% 

 Technology/mechanism for reporting and MI is being finalised. 

N2109.C Develop opportunities for future working with Health and Social Care colleagues 31 October 2021 
 
  

 
35% 

  
Work has started with NHS and Public Health with a view to develop a 'single front door' for initial customer contact with health and social care. 
 

  

N2110 Reform and integration : Advance the integration of services in line with the Greater 
Manchester model through delivery of 3 key programmes of work during 2021-22 

31 March 2022 
 
  

 
67% 

          

P
age 75



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  8  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2110.A 
Progress a prevention and recovery strategy by bringing together case work across directorates 
(place team; recovery and re-ablement) Maintain cooperative outcomes (including demand 
reduction) at a case and place level 

31 December 2021 
 
  

 
50% 

Recommendations from consultation event in July have been integrated into a proposed delivery model with options.  This is due to go to leadership in October to begin 
the decision making process towards a merged service model from April 2022. 
 
 

N2110.B 
Deliver MHCLG funded (£500k) community champions programmes; reducing barriers to health 
improvement (Covid and non-Covid) 

31 December 2021 
 
  

 
100% 

All 13 strands of this programme have been completed and the learning / evaluation programme has been completed, including publication of a best practice case study 
by Public Health England.  Learning from this programme has been integrated into the Prevention Strategy and Workplan.   
 

N2110.C Rochdale Borough is the first Good Help ‘place’ in the UK. Deliver the 2021-22 Good Help Plan 31 March 2022 
 
  

 
50% 

  
The Good Help Plan for 2021-22 is on target.  Key actions this quarter include the development of a good help report and curriculum to support the delivery of the 
prevention strategy.   
 

  

N2111 Review and build from the Council and borough’s community response to COVID 31 October 2021 
 
  

 
85% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2111.A 
Review Council’s community response to pandemic with partners to ensure lessons and best 
practice identified 

31 July 2021 
 
  

 
100% 

Two review sessions have taken place with council colleagues around lessons learnt from the pandemic, best practice and issues that will assist long-term community 
recovery from the pandemic. These have been fed back to Joint Senior Leadership Team and the portfolio holder. The Council has been shortlisted in the MJ Awards 
under the Community Heroes category for the work of the Covid Community Response team. 
 

P
age 76



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2021-22 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  9  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

N2111.B 
Agree a plan for mainstreaming support to those households most impacted, including Clinically 
Extreme Vulnerable 

31 October 2021 
 
  

 
70% 

A plan is being finalised following a series of discussions with partners and colleagues. This will link to a number of key documents, including the Council’s Prevention 
Strategy to help build on longer-term support for vulnerable households. 
 

 

P
age 77



 

Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date of Meeting 16th November 2021 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Finance and Corporate 
Report Author Theresa Edwards 

 

Public/Private Document Public 

 

 

Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman  Annual Review 2020-21 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
1. The report provides Members with the Annual Review of complaints made to 

the Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) about Rochdale 
Borough Council in the year ending 31 March 2021. 

 
Recommendation 

 
2. It is recommended that Members note the content of the report and Annual 

Review letter. 

 
Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. Part of the Council’s performance management process is to ensure the 

Authority’s ambition to continuously improve services is realised.  The Annual 
Review provides an overview of the effectiveness of the Council’s complaints 
procedures and customer satisfaction with Council services. 

 
Key Points for Consideration 

 
 
4. 
 
 
 
 
 
4.1 
 
 
 

 

The Annual Review letter provides local authorities with the LGSCO’s 
assessment of the Council’s performance in complaint handling for the previous 
financial year.  In addition, the review provides a general update on 
developments affecting the LGSCO and includes details of the Council’s 
compliance rate with the Ombudsman’s recommended remedies.   

The review shows the relatively small number of complaints received against 
Rochdale Council by the Ombudsman during 2020/21.  In total 39 complaints 
and enquiries were received which was a decrease on the number received last 
year which was 51. The number of decisions made by the LGSCO differs from 
the number of complaints and enquiries received, as complaints may be 

Page 78

Agenda Item 8



 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5 
 
 
 
 

received and decided upon in different financial years. To allow authorities to 
respond to the Covid-19 pandemic, the LGSSCO did not accept new complaints 
and stopped investigating existing cases between March and June 2020. This 
reduced the number of complaints received and decided in the 2020-21 year. 

Of 31 decisions made during 2020/21, only 6 complaints were subject to 
detailed investigation.  7 complaints were referred back to the Council as 
premature to be considered under the Council’s own complaints procedure, 14 
complaints were closed after initial enquiries, 2 complaints were 
incomplete/invalid and advice was given on a further 2 complaints.  

Of the 6 complaints that were investigated, all were found to be upheld.  This 
compares to an average of 72% in similar authorities.  The LGSCO 
recommended remedies for all of the upheld complaints, which were accepted 
and implemented by the Council.  

Details of the complaints that were upheld can be found below.  
 
LGO Category Nature of complaint 
Adult Care Process for carers assessment  
Adult Care  Information re care charges 
Adult Care  Withdrawal of support from placement  
Adult Care  Safeguarding investigation   
Adult Care  Financial Assessment   
Planning & Development Planning application process  

 
In addition to Annual Review letters, the LGSCO also publishes an Annual 
Review of Local Government Complaints and a summary of complaint statistics 
for every Local Authority in England. Appendix 2 contains an extract from the 
review which highlights Rochdale Council’s performance in comparison with 
neighbouring authorities.   

 
As can be seen from the extract, both the number of enquiries / complaints 
received by the LGSCO and the number of complaints decided in 2020/21 were 
similar for Rochdale Borough Council with other neighbouring authorities and 
lower in a few cases.  The compliance rate for Rochdale Borough Council 
implementing the LGSCO’s agreed remedies was 100%.   
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
None.  Information is provided annually by the Local Government & Social Care 
Ombudsman.  

 
Costs and Budget Summary 

 

Page 79



5. 4 of the upheld complaints resulted in a financial remedy.  The total cost of 
agreed local settlements for LGSCO complaint decisions during 2020-21 
was £1,000. A breakdown is shown below.    This is a significant decrease 
on the previous year when the total cost was £11,810.56.  
.   
Service £ 
Adult Care  250 
Adult Care  150 
Adult Care  400 
Adult Care   200 
Total £1,000 

 
Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. There are no specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this 

report.   
  

Consultation 
 
7. Not applicable. 

 
Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 
8. None   

 

For Further Information Contact: Theresa Edwards 
theresa.edwards@rochdale.gov.uk 
01706 923547 

Page 80



 
 
 
 

 
 
21 July 2021 
 
By email 
 
Mr Rumbelow 
Chief Executive 
Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council 
 
Dear Mr Rumbelow 
 
Annual Review letter 2021 
 
I write to you with our annual summary of statistics on the decisions made by the Local 

Government and Social Care Ombudsman about your authority for the year ending                      

31 March 2021. At the end of a challenging year, we maintain that good public administration is 

more important than ever and I hope this feedback provides you with both the opportunity to reflect 

on your Council’s performance and plan for the future.  

You will be aware that, at the end of March 2020 we took the unprecedented step of temporarily 

stopping our casework, in the wider public interest, to allow authorities to concentrate efforts on 

vital frontline services during the first wave of the Covid-19 outbreak. We restarted casework in 

late June 2020, after a three month pause.  

We listened to your feedback and decided it was unnecessary to pause our casework again during 

further waves of the pandemic. Instead, we have encouraged authorities to talk to us on an 

individual basis about difficulties responding to any stage of an investigation, including 

implementing our recommendations. We continue this approach and urge you to maintain clear 

communication with us. 

Complaint statistics 

This year, we continue to focus on the outcomes of complaints and what can be learned from 

them. We want to provide you with the most insightful information we can and have focused 

statistics on three key areas: 

Complaints upheld - We uphold complaints when we find some form of fault in an authority’s 

actions, including where the authority accepted fault before we investigated.  

Compliance with recommendations - We recommend ways for authorities to put things right 

when faults have caused injustice and monitor their compliance with our recommendations. 

Failure to comply is rare and a compliance rate below 100% is a cause for concern.  

Page 81



Satisfactory remedy provided by the authority - In these cases, the authority upheld the 

complaint and we agreed with how it offered to put things right. We encourage the early resolution 

of complaints and credit authorities that accept fault and find appropriate ways to put things right.  

Finally, we compare the three key annual statistics for your authority with similar types of 

authorities to work out an average level of performance. We do this for County Councils, District 

Councils, Metropolitan Boroughs, Unitary Councils, and London Boroughs. 

Your annual data will be uploaded to our interactive map, Your council’s performance, along with a 

copy of this letter on 28 July 2021. This useful tool places all our data and information about 

councils in one place. You can find the decisions we have made about your Council, public reports 

we have issued, and the service improvements your Council has agreed to make as a result of our 

investigations, as well as previous annual review letters.  

I would encourage you to share the resource with colleagues and elected members; the 

information can provide valuable insights into service areas, early warning signs of problems and 

is a key source of information for governance, audit, risk and scrutiny functions. 

As you would expect, data has been impacted by the pause to casework in the first quarter of the 

year. This should be considered when making comparisons with previous year’s data. 

Supporting complaint and service improvement  

I am increasingly concerned about the evidence I see of the erosion of effective complaint 

functions in local authorities. While no doubt the result of considerable and prolonged budget and 

demand pressures, the Covid-19 pandemic appears to have amplified the problems and my 

concerns. With much greater frequency, we find poor local complaint handling practices when 

investigating substantive service issues and see evidence of reductions in the overall capacity, 

status and visibility of local redress systems.  

With this context in mind, we are developing a new programme of work that will utilise complaints 

to drive improvements in both local complaint systems and services. We want to use the rich 

evidence of our casework to better identify authorities that need support to improve their complaint 

handling and target specific support to them. We are at the start of this ambitious work and there 

will be opportunities for local authorities to shape it over the coming months and years.  

An already established tool we have for supporting improvements in local complaint handling is 

our successful training programme. During the year, we successfully adapted our  

face-to-face courses for online delivery. We provided 79 online workshops during the year, 

reaching more than 1,100 people. To find out more visit www.lgo.org.uk/training. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 82

https://www.lgo.org.uk/your-councils-performance
http://www.lgo.org.uk/training


We were pleased to deliver an online complaint handling course to your staff during the year. I 

welcome your Council’s investment in good complaint handling training and trust the course was 

useful to you. 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 
Michael King 

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 

Chair, Commission for Local Administration in England

Page 83



Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council 

For the period ending: 31/03/21  

 

 

 

NOTE: To allow authorities to respond to the Covid-19 pandemic, we did not accept new complaints and 

stopped investigating existing cases between March and June 2020. This reduced the number of complaints 

we received and decided in the 20-21 year. Please consider this when comparing data from previous years. 

Complaints upheld 

  

100% of complaints we 
investigated were upheld. 

This compares to an average of 
72% in similar authorities. 

 
 

6                          
upheld decisions 

 
Statistics are based on a total of 6 

detailed investigations for the 
period between 1 April 2020 to 31 

March 2021 

Compliance with Ombudsman recommendations 

  

In 100% of cases we were 
satisfied the authority had 
successfully implemented our 
recommendations. 

This compares to an average of 
100% in similar authorities. 

 

 

Statistics are based on a total of 6 
compliance outcomes for the period 
between 1 April 2020 to 31 March 

2021 

• Failure to comply with our recommendations is rare. An authority with a compliance rate below 100% should 
scrutinise those complaints where it failed to comply and identify any learning. 
 

Satisfactory remedy provided by the authority 

  

In 17% of upheld cases we 
found the authority had provided 
a satisfactory remedy before the 
complaint reached the 
Ombudsman.  

This compares to an average of 
11% in similar authorities. 

 

1                      
satisfactory remedy decision 

 

Statistics are based on a total of 6 
detailed investigations for the 

period between 1 April 2020 to 31 
March 2021 

 

100% 

100% 

17% 

Page 84



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Complaints and Enquiries Received (by Category) 2020-21

Authority Name Adult
Social Care

Benefits
and Tax

Corporate and
Other Services

Education and
Children's 
Services

Environmental
Services, Public
Protection and

Regulation

Highways and
Transport Housing Planning and

Development Other Total

Blackburn with Darwen Council 5 3 4 6 4 3 0 2 0 27
Bolton Metropolitan Borough Council 11 2 0 4 6 5 3 6 1 38
Bury Metropolitan Borough Council 5 4 1 13 5 5 3 1 1 38
Oldham Metropolitan Borough Council 10 6 3 10 10 5 2 11 1 58
Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council 15 4 1 7 3 4 1 4 0 39
Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council 5 9 0 12 7 4 0 5 1 43

Notes

These statistics include all complaints and enquiries that w ere received from 01 April 2020 to 31 March 2021.

To allow  authorities to respond to the Covid-19 pandemic, w e did not accept new  complaints and stopped investigating existing cases betw een March and June 2020. This reduced the number of complaints w e received and decided in the 20-21 year. 

Some cases are received and decided in different business years. This means the number of complaints and enquiries received may not match the number of decisions made.

P
age 85



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Complaints and Enquiries Decided (by Outcome) 2020-21

Authority Name Invalid or 
Incomplete Advice Given

Referred 
Back for 

Local 
Resolution

Closed after 
Initial 

Enquiries
Not Upheld Upheld Total Uphold Rate 

(%)

Average 
uphold rate 

(%) of similar 
authorities 

Blackburn with Darwen Council 1 1 14 8 1 4 29 80% 63%
Bolton Metropolitan Borough Council 5 1 12 7 6 7 38 54% 72%
Bury Metropolitan Borough Council 3 1 11 9 4 7 35 64% 72%
Oldham Metropolitan Borough Council 3 2 19 16 5 10 55 67% 72%
Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council 2 2 7 14 0 6 31 100% 72%
Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council 0 3 7 17 7 9 43 56% 72%

Notes

These statistics include all complaints and enquiries that w ere decided from 01 April 2020 to 31 March 2021.

To allow  authorities to respond to the Covid-19 pandemic, w e did not accept new  complaints and stopped investigating existing cases betw een March and June 2020. This reduced the number of complaints w e received and decided in the 20-21 year. 

Some cases are received and decided in different business years. This means the number of complaints and enquiries received may not match the number of decisions made.

P
age 86



 

 

 

 

Remedy and compliance outcomes 2020-21

Authority Name
Number of 

upheld 
complaints

Uphold Rate 
(%)

Average uphold 
rate (%) of similar 

authorities 

Upheld cases where 
the authority provided 
a satisfactory remedy 
before the complaint 

reached the 
Ombudsman (%) 

Average 
satisfactory 

remedy rate of 
similar authorities 

(%)

Number of cases 
with a compliance 

outcome 
recorded during 

the year

Cases we were satisfied 
the authority successfully 

implemented our 
recommendations to 
remedy the complaint 
(compliance rate) (%)

Average compliance 
rate of similar 
authorities (%)

Blackburn with Darwen Council 4 80% 63% 25% 10% 3 100% 99%
Bolton Metropolitan Borough Council 7 54% 72% 29% 11% 5 100% 100%
Bury Metropolitan Borough Council 7 64% 72% 14% 11% 4 100% 100%
Oldham Metropolitan Borough Council 10 67% 72% 0% 11% 10 100% 100%
Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council 6 100% 72% 17% 11% 6 100% 100%
Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council 9 56% 72% 11% 11% 5 100% 100%

Notes
These statistics include remedy and compliance outcomes recorded between 01 April 2020 and 31 March 2021.
To allow authorities to respond to the Covid-19 pandemic, we did not accept new complaints and stopped investigating existing cases between March and June 2020. This reduced the number of complaints we received and decided in the 20-21 year. 
Some cases are received and decided in different business years; compliance outcomes may also fall in different business years. This means the number of complaints upheld may not match the number of remedy and compliance outcomes recorded.

P
age 87



Document is Restricted

Page 88

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 94

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	COS-Actions-List

	5 Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2021/2022
	6 Digital Strategy
	10. Rochdale Digital Strategy 14 October 2021

	7 Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2021/2022: Quarter 2 Performance Update
	Append. 1 for Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2021-22: Quarter 2 Performance Update
	Append. 2 for Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2021-22: Quarter 2 Performance Update

	8 Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman  Annual Review 2020-21
	Append. 1 for Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman  Annual Review 2020-21
	Append. 2 for Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman  Annual Review 2020-21

	10 Insurance Claims Report 2020/21
	Append. 1 for Insurance Claims Report 2020/21


